Wiltshire Council

~———->~_ Where everybody matters

AGENDA

Meeting: CABINET CAPITAL ASSETS COMMITTEE

Place: Kennet Room - County Hall, Trowbridge BA14 8JN

Date: Tuesday 17 May 2016

Time: 11.30 am or on the rising of Cabinet whichever is the later

Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Will Oulton, of Democratic Services,
County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line 01225 713935 or email
william.oulton@wiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225)713114/713115.

This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk

Membership:
Clir Fleur de Rhé- Cabinet Member for Economic Development, Skills,
Philipe Strategic Transport and Strategic Property
Clir Baroness Scott of  Leader of the Council
Bybrook OBE
Clir Toby Sturgis Cabinet Member for Strategic Planning, Development
Management, Strategic Housing, Operational Property and
Waste
Clir John Thomson Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Communities,
Campuses, Area Boards and Broadband
Clir Dick Tonge Cabinet Member for Finance
Substitutes:

Clir Keith Humphries Cabinet Member for Health (including Public Health) and
Adult Social Care

Clir Laura Mayes Cabinet Member for Children’s Services

Clir Jonathon Seed Cabinet Member for Housing, Leisure, Libraries and
Flooding

CliIr Stuart Wheeler Cabinet Member for Hubs, Heritage and Arts, Governance

and Support Services
CliIr Philip Whitehead Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport

Page 1


http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/

RECORDING AND BROADCASTING NOTIFICATION

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the
Council’'s website at http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv At the start of the meeting, the
Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being recorded. The images and
sound recordings may also be used for training purposes within the Council.

By entering the meeting room you are consenting to being recorded and to the use of
those images and recordings for broadcasting and/or training purposes.

The meeting may also be recorded by the press or members of the public.

Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the
Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting
from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings they
accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in
relation to any such claims or liabilities.

Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is
available on the Council’s website along with this agenda and available on request.

If you have any queries please contact Democratic Services using the contact details
above.

Page 2


http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv/

AGENDA
Part |

Items to be considered while the meeting is open to the public

Key Decisions: Matters defined as 'Key' Decisions and included in the
Council's Forward Work Plan are shown as O

Apologies and Substitutions

Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 5 - 10)

To confirm and sign as a correct record the minutes of the Cabinet (Capital
Assets) Committee meeting held on 15 March 2016.

Leader's Announcements

Declarations of interest

To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations granted by
the Standards Committee.

Public Participation and Questions from Councillors

The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public. This meeting
is open to the public , who may ask a question or make a statement. Questions
can also be asked by members of the Council. Written notice of questions or
statements should be given to Will Oulton of Democratic Services by 12.00 noon
on Thursday 12 May 2016. Anyone wishing to ask a question or make a
statement should contact the officer named above.

Transfer of land to the Wiltshire and Berkshire Canal Trust. (Pages 11 - 28)

Report by Dr Carlton Brand, Corporate Director

Urgent items

Any other items of business that the Leader agrees to consider as a matter of
urgency.

Our vision is to create stronger and more resilient communities. Our priorities are: To protect

those who are most vulnerable; to boost the local economy - creating and safeguarding jobs;
and to support and empower communities to do more themselves.

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Wiltsnire Council

~————_ Where everybody matters

CABINET CAPITAL ASSETS COMMITTEE

DRAFT MINUTES of a MEETING held in KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL,
TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN on Tuesday, 15 March 2016.

Clir Fleur de Rhé- Cabinet Member for Economic Development, SkKills,

Philipe Strategic Transport and Strategic Property

Clir Toby Sturgis Cabinet Member for Strategic Planning, Development
Management, Strategic Housing, Operational Property and
Waste

Clir John Thomson Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Communities,
Campuses, Area Boards and Broadband

Clir Dick Tonge Cabinet Member for Finance

Also in Attendance: Clir Stuart Wheeler and Clir Trevor Carbin

Key Decisions Matters defined as 'Key' Decisions and included in the Council’s Forward
Work Plan are shown as O=®

14  Apologies and Substitutions

Apologies were received from the Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE who was
substituted by CliIr Philip Whitehead.

Cllr John Thomson, Vice-Chairman, in the Chair.
15 Minutes of the previous meeting

The minutes of the meeting held on the 19 January 2016 were presented and
considered.

Resolved

To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the meeting held
on the19 January 2016 be

16 Leader's Announcements

There were no leaders announcements.
17 Declarations of interest

There were no declarations of interest.

18 Public Participation and Questions from Councillors

Page 5



19

20

21

It was noted that no requests for public participation had been received
The Enterprise Network - Old Fire Station extension

Clir Fleur De Rhé-Philipe, Cabinet Member for Economic Development and
Strategic Property, presented the report which presented a business case for
the refurbishment and extension of the Old Fire Station building, Salt Lane,
Salisbury, to enable the Enterprise Centre currently operating from the building
at over capacity to grow and provide further needed incubation space for new
enterprises in the city.

The meeting considered the exempt information in part two of the meeting, prior
to making the following resolution:

Resolved

1. To approve the business case for the extension of the Old Fire
Station Enterprise Centre

2. To delegate authority to the Associate Director for Economic
Development and Planning, in consultation with the Cabinet
Member for Economic Development, Skills, Strategic Transport and
Strategic Property and Cabinet Member Strategic Planning and
Development Management), Operational Property, Waste and
Strategic Housing to take forward the business case according to
the options set out in the report, noting that if Council funding is
required the proposal will be brought back to Cabinet.

Reason for Decision:

The Old Fire Station building is currently underused and the Enterprise Centre
is oversubscribed having already demonstrated considerable success in
providing a much needed service, assisting business growth and generating
Jjobs. There is a lack of business workspace in the centre of Salisbury as a
result of commercial pressure to convert property to residential use. This risks
having a knock on effect of decreasing the overall vitality and attractiveness of
the retail core. Providing for and stimulating the demand for office space for new
start-ups will have considerable economic benefit for the area while maximising
the usage of one of the Council’s assets.

Urgent items
There were no urgent items.
Exclusion of the Press and Public

Resolved

Page 6



22

23

To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government
Act 1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the following items of
business because it is likely that if members of the public were present
there would disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in
paragraph 3 of Part | of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public interest in
withholding the information outweighs the public interest in disclosing
the information to the public.

Reason for taking the item in private:

Paragraph 3 — information relating to the financial information or business
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information)

No representations have been received as to why this item should not be held
in private.

The Enterprise Network - Old Fire Station extension (Part Il Appendix)

The meeting considered the information in the appendix made exempt from
publication.

Swindon and Wiltshire Growth Fund (Part ii)

O=® Councillor Fleur de Rhé-Philipe, Cabinet Member for Economic
Development, Skills, Strategic Transport and Strategic Property, presented the
report which provided an update on the progress of funded Growth Deal
projects. The report sought confirmation and agreement from Cabinet Capital
Assets Committee on the list of prioritised projects that the Council may pursue
through future anticipated rounds of Growth Deals with Government (see
paragraph 17). The report also requested that Cabinet Capital Assets
Committee approves the process for approving and funding development costs
for Local Growth Fund projects.

Resolved

1. To note the progress of funded Growth Deal projects.

2. To confirm the list of prioritised projects that the Council may
pursue through future anticipated rounds of Growth Deals with
Government.

3. To approves the process for approving and funding development
costs to enable projects to be developed to a level where they
would stand a greater chance of securing funding through future
anticipated rounds of Growth Deals with Government.

Reasons for Decision:

Page 7



24

25

To ensure that Wiltshire Council maximizes the benefits and opportunities
associated with the Growth Deal programme in terms of delivering key
infrastructure projects and building Wiltshire’s economy whilst managing the
financial implications and associated risks to the organisation.

Brydge’s Court (Part Il Item)

Councillor Fleur de Rhé-Philipe, Cabinet Member for Economic Development,
Skills, Strategic Transport and Strategic Property, presented the report which
provided an update on the performance of the council owned and managed
business park at Brydges Court, Ludgershall, and seek approval for the
proposed method of repaying the Swindon and Wiltshire Local Enterprise
Partnership (SWLEP) provided loan under the Growing Places Infrastructure
Fund (GPIF).

Resolved

To delegate authority to the Associate Director for Economic
Development and Planning, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for
Economic Development, Skills, Strategic Transport and Strategic
Property, to enter into negotiations with the SWLEP to agree a reasonable
extension to the repayment term of the GPIF funding agreement, and to
enable the Council to lease or sell the remaining unoccupied units on the
scheme.

Reasons for Decision:

It is necessary for the Council to renegotiate the term of the existing GPIF
agreement with the SWLEP to enable unoccupied units to be let or sold so that
repayment of the grant can be made without incurring additional revenue
pressure to the Council, while ensuring the economic benefits of the Brydges
Court scheme at Ludgershall.

Surplus Assets for Disposal (Part Il Item)

O=» Councillor Fleur de Rhé-Philipe, Cabinet Member for Economic
Development, Skills, Strategic Transport and Strategic Property, and Councillor
Toby Sturgis, Cabinet Member for Strategic Planning, Development
Management, Strategic Housing, Operational Property and Waste, presented
the report which asked the Committee to consider declaring 15 assets surplus
and to authorise their sale at or above market value.

Resolved

To declare 15 assets listed in the report as assets held for sale.

Page 8



To Authorise the Associate Director for People and Business to dispose
of the assets at or above market value and on such terms as to be
determined by the Associate Director for People and Business.

Reasons for Decision:

To declare assets surplus so that they can be sold in order to generate capital
receipts in support of the council’s capital programme.

(Duration of meeting: 1.20 - 1.54 pm)

These decisions were published on the 17 March 2016 and will come into force on 29
March 2016

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Will Oulton, of Democratic Services,
direct line 01225 713935 or e-mail william.oulton@wiltshire.gov.uk
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115

Page 9




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Agenda Iltem 6
Wiltshire Council

Cabinet Capital Assets Committee

17 May 2016

Subject: Transfer of land to the Wilts & Berks Canal Trust

Cabinet members: Clir Fleur de Rhé-Philipe - Cabinet Member for
Economic Development, Skills, Strategic Transport
and Strategic Property

Clir Toby Sturgis - Cabinet Member for Strategic
Planning, Development Management, Strategic
Housing, Operational Property and Waste

Key Decision: No

Executive Summary

The Wilts & Berks Canal Trust (WBCT) has approached this Council as
landowner to have 6 relatively small areas of land transferred to it. This is to
further its aim of re-creating a navigable canal route linking the Kennet & Avon
Canal near Melksham to the river Thames at Abingdon in Oxfordshire.

Proposal

That Committee is asked to support the WBCT by agreeing to the principle of
transferring the assets listed in this report.

That Committee delegates authority to the Associate Director for People &
Business, the Associate Director for Finance and the Associate Director for
legal and governance in consultation with Cabinet Member for Economic
Development, Skills, Strategic Transport and Strategic Property, Clir Fleur de
Rhé-Philipe the basis of transfer (freehold or long leasehold) and the detailed
terms of each transfer/lease.

That Committee confirms at this time that its intentions are limited to
transferring the assets only and they do not extend to seeking compulsory
purchase powers on behalf of the WBCT.

Reason for Proposal

To support the aspirations of the Council’s business plan, the Wilts & Berks
Canal Trust's aims, the Council’s Core strategy and to reduce the Council’s
liabilities associated with those pieces of land already restored.

Dr Carlton Brand
Corporate Director

Final

Page 11



Wiltshire Council
Cabinet Capital Assets Committee

17 May 2016

Subject: Transfer of land to the Wilts & Berks Canal Trust

Cabinet members: Clir Fleur de Rhé-Philipe - Cabinet Member for
Economic Development, Skills, Strategic Transport
and Strategic Property

Clir Toby Sturgis - Cabinet Member for Strategic
Planning, Development Management, Strategic
Housing, Operational Property and Waste

Key Decision: No

Purpose of Report

1. To seek authorisation to transfer by way of long lease or freehold (as
appropriate) 6 areas of land in Wiltshire to the Wilts & Berks Canal
Trust (WBCT) to enable it to fulfil its aim of re-creating a navigable canal
route linking the Kennet & Avon Canal at Semington and the River
Thames near Abingdon in Oxfordshire.

Relevance to the Council’s Business Plan

2. This proposal will directly and indirectly contribute towards the following
outcomes of the Business plan:-

e Outcome 1 — Wiltshire has a thriving and growing local economy.
Whilst it will take time to create a fully navigable canal across Wiltshire,
once open, it will bring considerable benefits to the local economy much
like the Kennet and Avon Canal has since its re-opening in 1990.

e Outcome 3 — Everyone in Wiltshire lives in a high quality environment.
Those parts of the Wilts & Berks Canal that have been restored offer a
high quality environment for the people of Wiltshire and beyond to
experience and enjoy. Allowing more stretches to be restored will
increase this provision.

e Qutcome 5 — People in Wiltshire have healthy, active and high quality
lives. Those parts of the Wilts & BerksCanal that have been restored
have enhanced the network of routes for walkers and cyclists to enjoy
the Wiltshire countryside, thus enhancing their general health and
wellbeing. Again, allowing more stretches to be restored will enhance
this further.

Main Considerations for the Council

3. Each of the sites requested for transfer by the WBCT have different
existing uses, legal/occupation issues and have potential strategic and

Final

Page 12



10.

Final

other values. One of the main strategic aspects of these areas of land
is their status in Wiltshire’s Core Strategy.

Wiltshire Core Strateqy

Wiltshire’s Core Strategy acknowledges that Canals are an important
part of Wiltshire’s green infrastructure and sustainable transport
network. They provide recreational opportunities for boating and walking
and green corridors for wildlife as well as playing a role in conveying
flood water.

Core Policy 53 - Wiltshire’s canals - The restoration and reconstruction
of the Wilts and Berks and Thames and Severn canals as navigable
waterways is supported in principle. The historic alignments of the Wilts
and Berks, including the North Wilts Branch, and Thames and Severn
Canals, as identified on the policies map, will be safeguarded with a
view to their long-term re-establishment as navigable waterways.

These alignments will be safeguarded by:

i. not permitting development likely to destroy the canal alignment
or its associated structures, or likely to make restoration more
difficult

ii. ensuring that where the canal is affected by development, the
alignment is protected or an alternative alignment is provided.

Proposals will be permitted that are designed to develop the canal’s
recreational and nature conservation potential, in particular, the use of
the old line of the canal for walking, cycling and educational
display/interpretation boards.

Proposals for the reinstatement of canal along these historic alignments
or any alternative alignments will need to demonstrate that the cultural,
historic and natural environment will be protected and enhanced, with
no overall adverse effect, and that potential impacts on ecology,
landscape, flood risk, water resources (abstraction) and water quality
have been fully assessed and taken into account.

Proposals for the reinstatement of discrete sections of the canal will also
need to demonstrate that the potential environmental impacts of the
restoration project as a whole have been assessed and taken into
account.

Core Policy 16 - One of the parcels of land to the south west of
Melksham in Berryfield lies within the ‘Melksham link project’ - Core
Policy 16. It states that development should not prejudice the future use
of the route as part of the Wilts & Berks Canal restoration  project.

Restoration of the entire canal route will require the support and co-
operation of many landowners whose property is subject to the
restriction on development imposed by Core Strategy Policies 16 and
53. To assist with the delivery of this and demonstrate support to these
policies, the Council as landowner is able to make its own land available

Page 13



for canal restoration. Additionally, the council is the lead Local Authority
of the Wiltshire, Swindon & Oxfordshire Canal Partnership.

11.  Several of the parcels of land requested by the WBCT have already
been restored and opened for public access.  These include foot
bridges, locks and vehicle crossings. There are significant risks to health
and safety associated with open bodies of water such as these. The
liability for ~ managing these risks and maintaining structures will be
transferred to the WBCT who, due to specialist nature of their
organisation and number of sites owned are in a far better position to
do so than the Council is at managing these risks.

12. The WBCT has expressed that the sites be transferred in the spirit of
the council’s community asset transfer policy.

Background

13.  The original Wilts and Berks Canal opened in 1810 having taken 15
years to complete. Of its 52 mile length, 30 miles lay within Wiltshire. It
was originally used to transport various goods and materials to include
those required to construct the Great Western Railway. Following a
steady decline in use due to the superiority of the Kennet and Avon
Canal and growth of the railways it was abandoned by an Act of
Parliament in 1914 and the land on which it stood was either returned or
sold to adjoining landowners.

14. The WBCT, originally formed in 1977, is a registered charity (no.
299595) and a registered company by limited guarantee (no. 2267719).
Its aims are “To protect, conserve and improve the route of the Wilts &
Berks and North Wilts Canals, and branches, for the benefit of the
community and environment, with the ultimate goal of restoring a
continuous navigable waterway linking the Kennet & Avon canal near
Melksham, the River Thames near Abingdon, and the Thames & Severn
canal near Cricklade.” Further information is available
http://www.wbct.org.uk/

15. The entire route of the canal, a list of the Council sites and their
locations (red stars) are shown below.

Land at Morningside Farm, Royal Wootton Bassett
Land at Scotlands Farm, Royal Wootton Bassett
Land adjacent to Lackham College, Naish Hill

Land at Forest Farms, Melksham

King George V playing field Melksham

Playground at Berryfield Park, Berryfield, Melksham

~PQo0 T

More detailed and indicative site plans are provided in Appendix I.

Final

Page 14


http://www.wbct.org.uk/

# KILINGTON

ukes

iyl

Cut

¢ \ Cassingten =
<l " A A | Curt &
Junction Cotswg /o L 200 &
= e\v STONEHOUSE _— _,\,f, e Co \\__:.._ - bl —
& G SSTROUD N\ egipperton. Se, 7@ . \.
- “Ougwatel | 185 5 Ve ‘/15‘ R I v \e r
GIPCAMERIDGE Aawvigatio” M CIRENCESTER _ J
rand 30 . o ks
O Sapperian SSIOINGTON €, 79, oLECHLADE e /
Tunnel 4 a y
B e 7 INGLESHAM “B'”GD?B’:- 55 N
Q Laver 280, —_— el - 4 . Q‘
CRIEKIADE SDORCHESTER &
N z LONGCOT A @
2 ; > v
S WALLINGFORD”] LAV
& * WANTAGE ‘2\\ o\
oN \ N
a ~J w
9 ca n GORING
rks :
A B e
i PANGEOURME » CAVERSHAM
/ / . 130
# ° CHIPPENHAM / X
H | READING
O (-] n (4 a n a
L) Ke /“ 0 THEALE® o
Bath Decp o2, Claverton A o I NEWRURY ; s
Lac! A et Pumping Caen Summir Level HUNGEHFUHBM‘

a Station
BATH “ou s Nt

" i’ .KINTEUR'\‘
ELRSHAM g Locks 3 Ho‘:’.\“""“"" Beam Engines

MIDFORD, BRADFOAD ;
o e SN AT L g I Kennet & Avon g
"~ m*;'ﬁ&” L5, DE‘HZEsol_.m.ll TrustCentre ™ ooy
" lz%\mcl[ﬂ- - ~Zigron BN i o :) IRias
Aquestuct TROWERIDGE =3 | %‘

o 5 10 15 kilomatres

16. WBCT has recently created a new governance and management
structure which has a board of trustees overseeing strategy and an
executive team to carry out delivery of the project. This is supported by
a very strong pool of volunteers who help with the restoration work and
it has successfully relied on direct negotiations with landowners to
secure sections of the former canal route. It attracts donations, grant
funding and in some cases S.106 planning gain monies to fund the
works. It is considering the possibility of obtaining compulsory purchase
powers under the Transport and Works Act directly or via the Canal and
River Trust (formerly British Waterways) as acquiring authority.

17.  The WBCT has appointed a master planner and has identified 3 major
programmes for delivery each comprising up to 10 projects with much
greater focus on enabling development to assist with the release of land
for the canal restoration. The masterplan process has identified the
need to vary the original route of the canal in places to ensure
continuity.

18. Both the Council and the WBCT are key members of the Wiltshire
Swindon & Oxfordshire Canal Partnership. This partnership
(www.wiltsandberkscanal.org.uk) has a wide range of organisations
supporting the restoration including Sustrans to create a safe walking and
in some instances cycle routes along the canal corridor by recreating the
towpath. This is known as the Towpath project and ultimately aims to
create a safe walking route between Bath and Oxford. The Canal & River
trust (formerly British Waterways) is actively supporting the restoration of
the Wilts & Berks canal as part of a new southern canals network.

Background — Site specific

19. Plans showing for indicative purposes the extent of what is to be
transferred in each case are provided in the appendix.

Final

Page 15


http://www.wiltsandberkscanal.org.uk/

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

Land at Morningside Farm, Royal Wootton Bassett — acquired by North
Wiltshire District Council (NWDC) to facilitate the restoration of the canal
in conjunction with the WBCT. Restoration was completed about 3
years ago and included the re-construction of a new vehicle bridge over
the canal and a new lock. The remainder of the land at Morningside
Farm has been declared surplus by this Committee and proceeding to
transfer the freehold of the canal will facilitate the remaining land to be
sold.

The canal at Scotlands Farm, Royal Wootton Bassett was restored
about 20 years ago with the permission of Wiltshire County Council. It
forms the northern boundary of a larger block of agricultural land which
is let out and is held for reversionary/longer term purposes.

Land adjacent to Lackham College, Naish Hill was also acquired by
NWDC to facilitate the restoration of this section of the canal which was
largely completed about 10 years ago. This involved restoration either
side of the Council’s land and included the reinstatement of a bridge and
locks.

Land at Forest Farms, Melksham. This section runs through the
council’s rural estate and is therefore occupied by third parties. This
section of canal has not been restored and it is proposed that when the
opportunity arises to free the canal site from the tenancies, the Council
does so and then transfers it to the WBCT with suitable provisions to
ensure that it also provides, as accommodation works, a suitable vehicle
crossing.

Part of King George V Playing Field Melksham. This is held by the
council as a Field in Trust http://www.fieldsintrust.org/ Only a very
small part of the field is required and the WBCT has already carried out
works on this site. The transfer of this site is likely to required the prior
consent of Fields in Trust and possibly the Charity Commission and
subject to their respective permissions being granted, this small site is
proposed to be transferred.

Playground at Berryfield Park, Berryfield, Melksham. This forms part of
the Melksham link project, the exact route of which is yet to be
confirmed but it currently goes through an existing playground. There
are some covenants relating to its use and should this land be required,
it is proposed that it is transferred subject to the WBCT negotiating the
release of any covenants and to the replacement of the playground
elsewhere in the local community together with other considerations as
appropriate.

Overview & Scrutiny Engagement

26.

[To be completed by OSE team.]

Safeguarding Implications

27.

There are no safeguarding implications with this proposal.

Public Health Implications

Final

Page 16


http://www.fieldsintrust.org/

28.

29.

Along all the stretches of canal that have already been restored, the
WBCT has reinstated a towpath and wherever possible, linked this in to
the existing public rights of way network to ensure that it is enjoyed by
as many people as possible. This has increased the opportunities for
free public walking, running and cycling access in a traffic free
environment. Numerous working parties are organised by WBCT that
promotes active restoration which primarily involves a wide range of
volunteers and is an indirect way of enhancing fitness and social
wellbeing.

There are health risks associated with open bodies of water such as
canals. The liability for managing these risks will be transferred to the
WBCT with every transfer and due to its specialist nature it is in a better
position than the Council to provide safeguarding measures (e.g.
buoyancy aids, signage, education).

Procurement Implications

30.

There are no notable procurement implications to the Council with the
proposals in this report.

Equalities Impact of the Proposal

31.

There are no notable equalities impact of transferring land by way of
freehold or leasehold interest in the way proposed. Restoring the canal
will enhance the ability of the diverse population of Wiltshire and beyond
to access and enjoy the landscape and countryside of Wiltshire,
Swindon and Oxfordshire.

Environmental and Climate Change Considerations

32.

33.

There are no significant detrimental environment and climate change
implications with this proposal. Increasing the right of way network
provision will assist the population to travel across the County in more
sustainable forms of transport.

Prior to carrying out any restoration engineering works planning
permission will need to be obtained and during that process
consideration will be giving to the impact of the works on habitats and
ecology and mitigation measures sought as part of the application
process prior to approval being granted.

Risk Assessment

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not

taken

34.

35.

Final

Members of the public currently use the towpaths alongside the
stretches of the restored canal and the Council will continue to carry the
public liability for them if the proposed decision is not taken.

The WBCT is increasingly required to demonstrate deliverability of
certain sections of the canal. Not supporting it could weaken the
policies protecting the route in the Core Strategy.

Page 17



Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that
will be taken to manage these risks.

Risk Action to mitigate the risk

The project to restore the entire Ensure that land  parcels
length of the canal may fail leaving transferred to the WBCT are
the WBCT with short stretches of capable of delivering public
un-connecting canal. access, economic or
environmental benefits, or reduce
the Councils financial liability, in
isolation and on their own merits.

The parcels of land are transferred A business plan will be required

to WBCT who then lack the from WBCT in respect of any

funding to restore or maintain them unrestored stretch prior to it
being transferred. This is to
avoid the Council having to find
funds to maintain sections of
canal and surrounding land if the
WBCT did receive the land.

The Council comes under The lease/transfer to WBCT will
pressure to compulsorily acquire only be agreed on the basis that
sections of the canal if other this is not an expectation of the
landowners are unwilling to co- WBCT. The WBCT will need to
operate (as occurred with Stroud register as a navigation authority

District Council) and will be seeking CPO powers
under the Transport and Works
Act.

Financial Implications

36.

37.

There are no anticipated negative financial implications with the
proposal. Most of the sites are alongside agricultural land and as the
route is protected in the Core Strategy, no development can take place.
The market value of the restored sites is therefore very limited and this
needs to be weighed up against the possible negative value of the sites
yet to be restored because they may have been filled in with harmful
material or material that cannot be reused locally and has to be properly
disposed of at cost.

Transferring the Morningside Farm site will enable the remaining
farmland to be sold by the council which is forecasted to be realised in
the 2016/17 financial year.

Legal Implications

38.

Final

Some of the proposed sites are currently included within agricultural
tenancies. In addition, one of the sites is currently used as a play area
and further discussions will need to take place regarding the
repositioning of this facility. Therefore, the transfer/lease of the parcels
will need to be on a phased basis.

Page 18



39. The estates team of Strategic Assets & Facilities Management will
agree the lease/transfer terms associated with each parcel of land to
cover any legal implications that may arise. In general, the terms of the
lease/transfer will be in accordance with the principles of the community
asset transfer policy to include an obligation to transfer back the land in
certain agreed circumstances.

40. Section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972 gives Wiltshire Council
the ability to transfer land at less than market value where that transfer
helps secure the promotion of the economic, social, or environmental
wellbeing of the area. The Secretary of State’s approval is required if
the undervalue exceeds £2,000,000 — which is unlikely to be the case in
any of the transfers to be considered in this project.

41.  Once the s123 condition is satisfied then WC can transfer the ownership
of an asset to WBCT if WC holds sufficient rights in that asset, the right
in the asset held by WC can only be determined by a detailed analysis
of the title document.

Options Considered
Reject the proposal and refuse to transfer any land parcels to the WBCT.

42.  This option is considered inequitable on the basis that some of the land
parcels were acquired by NWDC in order to facilitate Canal restoration
and significant volunteer time, WBCT members time and funds have
been invested in them (e.g. restoration of combined new brick built
bridge and lock at Morningside Farm). Some of the parcels will
represent a financial liability to the Council if retained. This approach is
contrary to the sentiments of policies 53 and 16 of the Core Strategy.

Conclusions

43. Whilst complete restoration may be several years away, the
determination of the WBCT has thus far restored considerable sections
of the former canal. It is likely that as more sections become linked,
they will become increasingly beneficial to the overall wellbeing of the
area and of the population, much like the Kennet and Avon Canal is
today.

44. Committee is asked to consider showing its support by agreeing in
principle to transfer the assets highlighted in this report.

45. Committee is further asked to delegate to Officers the detailed decisions
of whether to transfer each site either by freehold or long leasehold
interest and to incorporate terms therein to protect the Council’s
interests.

Dr Carlton Brand
Corporate Director

Final

Page 19



Report Authors:

Stephen Morgan, Asset Portfolio Manager (Estates Lead),

01225 713237, stephen.morgan@wiltshire.gov.uk

Jenny Rowe, Estates Manager 01225713238 — jenny.rowe@wiltshire.gov.uk
Ken Oliver, Countryside Officer 01249706494 — ken.oliver@wiltshire.gov.uk

21st April 2016

Background Papers

The following documents have been relied on in the preparation of this report:
None

Appendices

Appendix I: Location and Indicative Site Plans

Final

Page 20


mailto:stephen.morgan@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:jenny.rowe@wiltshire.gov.uk
mailto:ken.oliver@wiltshire.gov.uk

Wilts & Berks Canal

53 APLINGTON
‘J Dike’s
qjﬁ’{;‘ Caaslngin Cut
; WITNEY LR $

b
Co ts E:"" 0 "Fd 4, Sm“h #&F
= &
STONEHOUSE T c e e
S STROUD  \'y e 8 3“"-':#; h o OXFORD !
” 165 g RUFPERT :
muﬁiﬁﬂ‘iﬁﬂ X 3o CIRENCESTER e R !/
* Sapperton oSIODINGTON € 4 . 790, LECHLADE
NAILSWORTH ® Tunmel & .3 @ .'.‘;
Sumimit i %
Q Lawval 280, 'Q\
el € RCHESTER %
L CRl I i A 5
2 DIDCOT 2, "
¥ &

AL MESHUHY

o
o .
(@) E_I'!I""f'l-"ll.l
() .EUEII:-UH'I' ﬁ:p
N
= A
3 CAVERSHAM
kY . 130
& Q CHIPPENHAM .
=2
© 7
Bath 0 £ e
1) Claverion
md Pumping : I
-r. : hnl:llm ::,' 250
Bﬁ‘IE-EIH T ;5 duct Jll s Bt'-lﬂ'lEl'lBllHﬂ- H‘:FEF Kﬂﬂnat
FORD (A D =
(o, MBppartot RN, A e Enar R : Tt —

= ERSFF. Ao ﬂ HEES EY : ikt g

HH—F’/-H-F - ._| ] ] i 5 %"".l' oton E.1l:|‘r'| ? P I5 ﬂ“ﬂmnmfﬂ;:mmrﬂmm1 405
: I i Tek: 0110 B35 3667 Faar 118 558 TI56
“"‘ ! MHIDEE 1 T T In-.u-mmlﬂg:;pmm
r T Crimam nghla
0 5 10 Ligance mamibas HO0I004E

sue|d 9}IS 9Al}e2IpU] pue uoljeso | xipuaddy



1 & 2 - Royal Wootton Bassett

2¢ obed

hile
. _J Horse N
Mg Broad Town 49

(A4361

mr
S ——

4 r _ Wirdlrmail wlnlu'hmmlr
1 i=

P Yafochiyy JATL Fil e = Mook ton
""‘“’"‘ll.“ = B Croowm CDP].ITIQh‘t and databasze rights 2012 Ordnance Suarwey 100043050
"'\_ " 'I.1 LT b1 T saWETVINY W e M

L 3



1 - Morningside Farm RWB 2 - Templars Firs RWB

> 1

Wiltshire Council land at Morningside Farm, RWB . NTT 1
oduced by WECT March 2013, using 05 data, s (reeCommunlgacon Wiltshire Council land at Templar's Firs, RWB
e oan t b o produced by WBCT, March 2013, using 05 dara,
. _ sx a rmands il Crown copyright
RN Shymarets Wil Farm 1:3200 at Ad
3D
B

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180 200 m
[ S E— E—E— S—

ez abed

0 20 40-6H 80 100m

\ |

Approximate Area 12000 sq m with a right of way

over adjacent land also in Wiltshire Council ownership
subject to safeguarding any highway rights and highway
support and structures.

Approximate Area: 27,000 sq m with a right of way over adjacent
land also in Wiltshire Council ownership



3) Naish Hill Reybridge

LRSS . ueas/ L g | AS102) S
e b.& I GH[PPENH M ‘\f I ‘/ | H Q w:sm«c%uvrﬂgndum:‘m;nuwgmz
=g Bramhl I produced by WECT,arch 2013, Using 05 daa

i i' B“{j i\@\ & Il'. Compton ' < i i

L "-..' L B 3 “ / \J"“%! Bassett .
J’M ﬁl L Sy il ._':___ “" % CAL"E Yateshu ° S

P 5 ° [

Py e E ,,. " [:" Cherhill s
||" . s oF ‘
Wi221790 °

Wiltshire Councl

L i Hﬂml‘.fwa;

#%.ﬂz )

1 \“thle HGISE ]

0 20 40 60 80 100,

: ® Crowm cop},rrlgh'l and database rlgh'ts 2013 Drdnance SuruewaDdSDSU ]
B —kreail . —" T “mi 1 e S il LIRS

Approximate Area 45,000 sq m which includes meadows that
have potential for habitat and ecological enhancements. Terms
relating to the transfer of this section will require that the
meadows are managed to release and enhance this potential and
to then maintain it.



4 - Forest Farms Melksham

: % i

I

Neston 3
A365 H?ﬁ“ ROARRE

=

oy ZZNorringlon /- Saw LG
: Comman {5

o e !
, Beanacre -

. =

{ S/SOREEN-9% '

o copyg v S s Y3 Chod o ey LG wIR
Approximate Area; 50,000 sq m subject to detailed investigations
of boundary.



5 - King George V Playing Field - Melksham

'rm’ L -.IE“.“' MEIH
lh" — C‘én'f

i
“Hill o, = B = 17 . Howse! Eim
ch}' p Gastar ﬁ l \\T:EE A il

Mﬂnwden fLane
T % W

F ' acrg?’?‘w:_f:
|¢‘
Ao'l"'_" .
S "‘--- ! YT [— "y
/ f) g While Horse
mwrﬂ .Hp B'ratégj rt;n / MELKSHAH A /Rowde § (- fﬂnundway.a&‘ :

¢y "_E"Ils Green /-

El:l'l'lftar‘lllllﬁ~ ‘_ .‘_

= P‘-\ ==

end g/ \

lﬂﬂav ¥ \séend /
e A 35 1

f.-
k. & ‘)r, ‘rarnhmb J'
3‘“9? L
w,,ﬂ, =T Heywood _ﬂ,:\ ,
ﬂ JErrr g & Crown copyﬂgh‘l and data haze right= 2013 Drdnance Suruey 1 DDDdSDSDL
- —

il [ Tev

Gar Fark PR

= | s ] I|
: Guida -
i =] |
.CaT | Q‘ and Scout . | |
Park § . Cantra | II |
o = e I
= d
s |
. B
=1l B Posts. ]

L W . O

15; J,@J l:rovm copyright and da‘tabase rights 2013 Ordrance SurueyWDD-ﬂSDSD Sd b ebes 1
Approximate area 500sq m subject to detailed investigation of
boundary



6 — Berryfield, Melksham
'gi Mile

1
%I?& Roall |

A (=]

A3GS | ity =3

Anvorth Sesha — -

1} 1_2 \-\ '

o ZNarringlon /- SaWRLE
4 Comman £

Whife Harse

L Roundway=l, 124

e
shton
idgs FoAHeywond | W 5l .
o U:mmn g @_Crowﬁ copyright and database rights 2013 Ordnanee Survey 10004905
- P

—— e o omET T e sa - AL

[

) Aeor (
|..|;_a .
i Y L
ARG N el Y
~x

Berryfield

Approximate area - 700sq m



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	Minutes

	6 Transfer of land to the Wiltshire and Berkshire Canal Trust.
	CCAC Report Appendix I Plans - Transfer of land to the Wiltshire and Berkshire Canal Trust.


